
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                              

 

 

 

 

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Thursday, September 1, 2016 – 3:00 p.m. 

Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom – M2-01 

 

Table of Contents 

 

 

 

(1) Agenda         Pages 2-3 

  

(2) Proceedings and Minutes of Decisions and Resolutions 

    Meeting of June 30, 2016       Pages 4-9 

 

(3) Gifts and Grants        Pages 10-12 

 

(4) Minutes of the August 8, 2016 Executive Committee of the Board  Pages 13-19 

    

 

 

######## 

 

1



 
 

 

 

 
 

                      MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
AGENDA 

Thursday, September 1, 2016 – 3:00 p.m. 
Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom, M2-1 

 
 
(1) Meeting Called to Order 
 
(2) Presentation by Dr. William Hite, Superintendent 
      School District of Philadelphia 
 
(3) Consent Agenda   
 

(a) Proceedings and Minutes of Decisions and Resolutions 
Meeting of June 30, 2016 

(b) Gifts and Grants 
(c) Change Orders for Quinn Construction, Inc. 
(d) Award Abatement Contract 

 
(4) Report of the Nominating Committee for Board Officers   (A) 
 
(5) Public Comment 
 
(6) Report of the Chair 
 
(7) Foundation Report 
 
(8) Report of the President 
 
(9) New Business 
 
(10) Next Meeting:   Thursday, October 13, 2016 – 3:00 p.m. 
      Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom, M2-1 
 
(11) Executive Session 
 
 
Future Committee Meetings: 
 

Student Outcomes:     Thursday, September 1, 2016 
       1:30 p.m. – M2-34     

        
Business Affairs:     Wednesday, September 21, 2016 

2



 
       10:00 a.m. – Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom, M2-1 
 
Audit Committee:     Thursday, September 29, 2016 
       12:00 noon – Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom, M2-1 
 

Upcoming Events 
 
Association of Community College Trustees 
 Annual Congress     October 5-8, 2016 
        New Orleans, LA 
 
Pennsylvania Commission for Community Colleges  Tuesday, November 15, 2016 
 Southeast Regional Trustees Meeting   5:30 p.m. – 8:30 p.m. 
        Delaware County Community College 
        901 South Media Line Road 
        Media, PA 
 
Board of Trustees Retreat     Friday, November 18, 2016 
        8:30 a.m. – 3:00 p.m. – Room C2-5 
        Center for Business and Industry Building 
        18th and Callowhill Streets 
       
 
                                                         ################## 

3



 
COMMUNITY COLLEGE OF PHILADELPHIA 

Proceedings of the Meeting of the Board of Trustees 
Thursday, June 30, 2016 – 3:00 p.m. 

 
Present: Mr. White, presiding; Mr. Armbrister, Ms. Biemiller, Mr. Edwards, Ms. Hernández 

Vélez, Mr. Herzog, Mr. Johnson, Mr. Lassiter, Dr. Rényi, Ms. Tsai, Dr. Generals, 
Ms. DiGregorio, Mr. Coleman, Mr. Eapen, Dr. Gay, Mr. Murphy, Mr. Spiewak, 
and Ms. Zellers (by telephone) 

 
(1) Executive Session 
 
 The Executive Session was devoted to a discussion of budget and legal matters. 
 
(2) Meeting Called to Order 
 
 Mr. White called the meeting to order. 
 
(3) Consent Agenda 
 
 Mr. White requested Board approval of the following Consent Agenda: 
 

(a) Proceedings and Minutes of Decisions and Resolutions 
Meeting of June 2, 2016 

(b) Gifts and Grants 
(c) Fixed Stair Replacement in West Building 
(d) Solar Panel Project 
(e) 2016-17 Property and Casualty Insurance Renewal Program 
(f) Consultant for CCTV System for College Security 

 
Ms. Hernández Vélez moved, with Mr. Edwards seconding, that the Board approve the 

Consent Agenda.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
(4) Report of the Business Affairs Committee 
 
 Mr. White reported that staff had recommended Torrado Construction as the contractor 
for the replacement of the escalator in the West Building.  The contractor could not get a 
performance bond which is required by State law.  Mr. White stated that the College put 
contractor in touch with various individuals to help contractor get a performance bond.  
Unfortunately, the company has been unable to get a performance bond or the equivalent in time 
to handle the project.  For this reason, staff recommended that the Board award the bid to the 
second lowest bidder, A.P. Construction, as stated in the Consent Agenda. 
 

Ms. Tsai proposed the formation of an ad hoc committee to address long-standing 
challenges posed to emerging businesses by statutory requirements for performance bond and 
other issues.  Mr. Johnson, Mr. Eapen, and Ms.  Zellers will also serve on the ad hoc committee.   

4



 
(4a) Approval of the 2016-17 College Budget 
 
 At the request of Mr. White, Dr. Generals gave an overview of the proposed fiscal year 
2016-17 Budget.  He stated that the budget aligns with the Strategic Plan initiatives.  Dr. 
Generals stated that the budget contains no increase in tuition.  There is an increase in the 
technology and course fees which have not been increased in a number of years. 
 
 Dr. Generals reviewed the big spending items in the budget including seven faculty 
advisors that were added to improve retention and graduation rates and are aligned with the 
Guided Pathways work, and the technology to support those initiatives. 
 
 Dr. Generals reported that in his efforts to improve workforce development, he hired a 
Vice President for Workforce and Economic Innovation.  He stated that a Placement Director has 
been hired, and in the coming months, an Assistant Dean for Technical Education, may be hired.   
 
 Regarding City and State funding, Dr. Generals stated that the City has placed an 
additional $1 million in the budget for the College.  He stated that the College had not received 
formal notification as of yet from the City.   Dr. Generals stated that the $1 million will be 
dedicated to small business development in the community. 
 
 Regarding State funding, Dr. Generals stated that community colleges may receive a two 
and half percent increase from the State.  CCP’s share would total approximately $750,000.   Dr. 
Generals stated that based on the City and State funding scenarios, staff may have to come back 
to the Business Affairs Committee in August to make some budget adjustments.  
 
 On behalf of the Board, Mr. White congratulated staff on the excellent work that had 
been done on the 2016-17 Budget noting that the budget was aligned with Dr. Generals and the 
Board’s priorities. 
 
 After discussion, Mr. Lassiter moved, with Mr. Herzog seconding, that the Board 
approve the College’s 2016-17 Budget.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
(5) Report of the Audit Committee 
 
 Mr. White reported that the Audit Committee met on June 6, 2016.  He stated that the 
Committee reports directly to the Board.  Mr. White stated that Mr. Tony Simonetta, senior vice 
president of Philadelphia Industrial Development Corporation, chairs the Committee. 
 
 Mr. White reported that representatives from Grant Thornton, the College’s external 
auditor, presented an overview regarding the areas of focus, audit approach and new accounting 
pronouncements that will affect this year's 2015-16 audit and future fiscal years.   
 
 Mr. White stated that the Committee also discussed industry updates regarding the 
challenges that colleges and universities are facing, such as enrollment, retention and 
demographic changes.  He stated that as part of the audit, Grant Thornton will sit down with staff 

5



to see if there are any industry topics that the College would like discussed at the next Audit 
Committee meeting.   
 
 After discussion, Ms. Tsai moved, with Dr. Rényi seconding, that the Board accept the 
report of the Audit Committee.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
(6) Public Comment 
 
 There were no requests for Public Comment. 
 
(7) Report of the President 
 
 Dr. Generals called attention to his memorandum in the Board folder which outlined the 
list of his activities during the month of June, and summarized the highlights. 
 
(7a) Board of Trustees Retreat 
 
 Dr. General reported that proposed dates for the Board of Trustees Retreat in November 
2016 have been emailed to members of the Board.  The date for the Retreat will be confirmed 
once responses are received from Board members.  Dr. Generals stated that a draft of the 
Strategic Plan will be available for review at the Retreat. 
 
(7b) September 1, 2016 Board Meeting 
 
 Dr. Generals reported that as discussed at the January 2016 Board of Trustees Retreat, 
Dr. William Hite, Superintendent, School District of Philadelphia, has agreed to address the 
Board at the September 1, 2016 Board meeting.  Dr. Generals stated that Dr. Hite is scheduled to 
provide a 20 to 30 minute presentation of the District and any plans that deem relevant to the 
College’s mission and goals, followed by a question and answer period. 
 
(8) New Business 
 
 Mr. Murphy reported that the Foundation Golf outing is scheduled for July 25, 2016 at 
Manufacturer’s Golf and Country Club.  He stated that this year is the first time that the golf 
outing will gross over $100,000.  Mr. Murphy stated that Mr. Rob Wonderling, president and 
chief executive officer of the Greater Philadelphia Chamber of Commerce is chairing the golf 
outing and has done an outstanding job in getting sponsors for the event. 
 
 Mr. White reported that the Association of Community of Community College Trustees 
Annual Congress is scheduled on October 5-8, 2016 in New Orleans.  He encouraged members 
of the Board to attend the meeting. 
 
 Mr. Lassiter, chair of the Nominating Committee for Board Officers, reported that a 
number of Board members had submitted nominations for Board officers.  He stated that he will 
make a report at the September 1, 2016 Board meeting. 
 

6



 Regarding Board of Trustees nominations, Ms. Brown-Sow reported that Mr. Pat Eiding, 
President of the Philadelphia AFL-CIO, has been appointed chair of the Nominating Panel for 
Board Membership.  She asked Board members to submit names to her of any individuals who 
may be interested in applying for membership on CCP’s Board of Trustees.     
 
(9) Next Meeting 
 
 The next meeting of the Board of Trustees is scheduled for Thursday, September 1, 2016 
at 3:00 p.m. in the Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom.   
 
 The meeting adjourned at 3:55 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7



COMMUNITY COLLEGE OF PHILADELPHIA 
Meeting of the Board of Trustees 

Thursday, June 30, 2016 – 3:00 p.m. 
MINUTES OF DECISIONS AND RESOLUTIONS 

 
Present: Mr. White, presiding; Mr. Armbrister, Ms. Biemiller, Mr. Edwards, Ms. 

Hernández Vélez, Mr. Herzog, Mr. Johnson, Mr. Lassiter, Dr. Rényi, Ms. Tsai, 
Dr. Generals, Ms. DiGregorio, Mr. Coleman, Mr. Eapen, Dr. Gay, Mr. Murphy, 
Mr. Spiewak, and Ms. Zellers (by telephone) 

 
(1) Executive Session 
 
 The Executive Session was devoted to a discussion of budget and legal matters. 
 
(2) Meeting Called to Order 
 
 Mr. White called the meeting to order. 
 
(3) Consent Agenda 
 
 The Board approved the following Consent Agenda: 
 

(a) Proceedings and Minutes of Decisions and Resolutions 
Meeting of June 2, 2016 

(b) Gifts and Grants 
(c) Fixed Stair Replacement in West Building 
(d) Solar Panel Project 
(e) 2016-17 Property and Casualty Insurance Renewal Program 
(f) Consultant for CCTV System for College Security 

 
(4) Report of the Business Affairs Committee 
 
 Staff recommended Torrado Construction as the contractor for the replacement of the 
escalator in the West Building.  The company has been unable to get a performance bond (which 
is required by State law) or the equivalent in time to handle this project.  For this reason, staff 
recommended that the Board award the bid to the second lowest bidder, A.P. Construction, as 
stated in the Consent Agenda.   
 

Ms. Tsai proposed the formation of an ad hoc committee to address the long-standing 
challenges posed to emerging businesses by statutory requirements for performance bond and 
other issues.  Mr. Johnson, Mr. Eapen, and Ms. Zellers will serve on the ad hoc committee.   
 
(4a) Approval of the 2016-17 College Budget 
 

The Board approved the College’s 2016-17 Budget.   
 

8



(5) Report of the Audit Committee 
 
 The Board accepted the report of the Audit Committee.   
 
(6) Public Comment 
 
 There were no requests for Public Comment. 
 
(7) Report of the President 
 
 Dr. Generals called attention to his memorandum in the Board folder which outlined the 
list of his activities during the month of June, and summarized the highlights. 
 
(7a) Board of Trustees Retreat 
 
 Proposed dates for the Board of Trustees Retreat in November 2016 have been emailed to 
members of the Board.  The date for the Retreat will be confirmed once responses are received 
from Board members.   
 
(7b) September 1, 2016 Board Meeting 
 
 Dr. William Hite, Superintendent, School District of Philadelphia, will address the Board 
at the September 1, 2016 Board meeting.   
 
(8) New Business 
 
 The Foundation Golf outing is scheduled for July 25, 2016 at Manufacturer’s Golf and 
Country Club.   
 
 The Association of Community of Community College Trustees Annual Congress is 
scheduled on October 5-8, 2016 in New Orleans.   
 
 The Nominating Committee for Board Officers will make a report at the September 1, 
2016 Board meeting. 
 
 Mr. Pat Eiding, President of the Philadelphia AFL-CIO, has been appointed chair of the 
Nominating Panel for Board Membership.  Members of the Board were encouraged to submit 
names to Ms. Brown-sow of individuals who may be interested in applying for membership on 
CCP’s Board of Trustees.     
 
(9) Next Meeting 
 
 The next meeting of the Board of Trustees is scheduled for Thursday, September 1, 2016 
at 3:00 p.m. in the Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom.   
 
 The meeting adjourned at 3:55 p.m. 

9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19


	tableofcontents9.1.16
	agenda 9.1
	Proceedings6.30
	6.30.16Minutes
	GiftsangrantsSept2016
	ExecutiveCommitteeminutes8.8.16



